
   

 
CITY OF BELLA VISTA  

 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: This meeting has been given public notice in 
accordance with the Section 25-19-106 of the Freedom of Information 
Act, in such form that will apprise the general public and news media 
of subject matter that is intended for consideration and action. 

 
II. INVOCATION – Reverend Dale Schatz, Heritage Baptist Church. 

*** (See disclaimer below) 
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE; 
 

IV. ROLL CALL:  Mayor Peter Christie, Aldermen Frank Anderson, John 
Flynn, Allen King, Becky Morgan. 
James Wozniak (Vacation) and Larry Wilson (Absent due to illness). 

 
V. CITIZEN INPUT/PUBLIC APPEARANCES:  Please be advised that it 

is the policy of the municipality that there will be a three minute time 
period, per person, with time extension per the Chief Presiding Officer’s 
discretion; be further advised that there may be limited discussion on 
the information received, but no response or action will be made under 
public comment. 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: August 24, 2015 and September 14, 2015 

 

VII. REPORTS: 
A. Mayor’s Report –  
B. Monthly Financial Report – August, 2015 

 
VIII. MOTION TO SUSPEND RULES: and read all proposed ordinances 

and resolutions on the agenda by title only. 
 

IX. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. ORDINANCE NO. 2015 -AMENDING SECTION 20-3 OF THE  CODE 
OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA  TO MODIFY 
THE PERMISSIBLE TIME PERIODS FOR  USAGE OF FIREWORKS, 
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. Third and Final Reading. 
 
 

 

 
MEETING: REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

DATE AND TIME: Monday, September 28, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 
Bella Vista American Legion Post 341 

1889 Bella Vista Way (Hwy 71 & Kingsland Rd) 
Bella Vista, Arkansas 



   

 
B. ORDINANCE NO 2015- AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO MODIFY THE HOURS OF 
PERMISSIBLE DOOR-TO-DOOR SOLICITATION TO BRING 
PROVISIONS WITHIN CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITS. Second Reading. 

 
C. ORDINANCE NO. 2015- AMENDING SECTION 6-2 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO MODIFY THE 
REFERENDUM PERIOD FOR ORDINANCES TO SIXTY (60) DAYS 
FOR ALL NON-BOND ISSUE ORDINANCES AND THIRTY (30) DAYS 
FOR ALL BOND ISSUE ORDINANCES, DECLARING AND 
EMERGENCY, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. Second Reading. 

 
D. ORDINANCE NO 2015- WAIVING THE REQUIREMENTS OF 

FORMAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
PURCHASE OF STREET SALT AND SAND BASED ON PRICE AND 
AVAILABILITY BY INFORMAL PRICE QUOTES. 

 
E. RESOLUTION- ESTABLISHING AN INVESTMENT POLICY FOR 

THE CITY. 
 

F. RESOLUTION-R2015-AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY 
CLERK TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH PHYSIO CONTROL, 
PURSUANT TO A COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
THROUGH THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF STATE 
PROCUREMENT OFFICIALS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $43,827.35 FOR 
THE PURCHASE OF DEFIBRILATOR EQUIPMENT FOR USE BY THE 
FIRE DEPARTMENT. 

 
G. RESOLUTION-R2015-APPROVING A LAW ENFORCEMENT 

MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA 
POLICE DEPARTMENT AND THE CITY OF BENTONVILLE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT. 

 
H. RESOLUTION-R2015- CONDEMNING AND ORDERING THE 

RAZING AND REMOVAL OF A DILAPIDATED, UNSAFE, AND 
NUISANCE STRUCTURE OWNED BY ROBERT LEE JACKSON 
LOCATED AT 9276 SUITS US DRIVE IN THE CITY OF BELLA 
VISTA.  OPEN PUBLIC HEARING 

 
   CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING 

 
I. RESOLUTION-R2015- APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE BOARD OF 

ZONING ADJUSTMENT TO FILL EXPIRING TERMS. 
 

J. RESOLUTION- R2015-AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CLERK 
TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH VANCON PROPERTIES, LLC, 
FOR THE RENTAL OF OFFICE SPACE FOR THE CITY OF BELLA 
VISTA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2016, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 



   

 
 

 
K. RESOLUTION-R2015- AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY 

CLERK TO ENTER INTO CONTRACTS WITH SCOTT EQUIPMENT, 
BUS ANDREWS EQUIPMENT, INC., HILBILT SALES, AND JOHNSON 
TRUCK & TRAILER OF LOWELL FOR THE PURCHASE OF SNOW 
REMOVAL EQUIPMENT IN A TOTAL AMOUNT OF $39,223.68 FOR 
USE BY THE STREET DEPARTMENT. 

 
 

DISCUSSION – 
 
 
 

MEETINGS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
• The next City Council Work Session will be Monday Oct. 19, 

2015 @ 5:30PM in the City Hall Conference Room. 
• The next Regular meeting of the City Council, Monday Oct. 26, 2015 

at 6:30 PM at the Bella Vista American Legion Hall. 
• Planning Commission Work Session will be Wednesday Sept. 30, 

2015 at 4:00PM in the City Hall conference room. 
• Planning Commission Regular Meeting will be Oct. 12, 2015 at 

6:30PM in the City Hall Conference room. 
• Public Safety Committee Meeting will be October 14, 2015 at 

9:00AM in the City Hall Conference room. 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
*** Please note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of 
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request 
this service, please contact the City Clerk at 479-876-1255. 
*** Any invocation that may be offered at the start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary 
offering of a private citizen, to and for the benefit of the Council. The views or beliefs expressed by 
the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Council and do not 
necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the Council in part or as a whole. No member 
of the community is required to attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no 
impact on their right to actively participate in the business of the Council. Copies of the policy 
governing invocations and setting forth the procedure to have a person deliver an invocation are 
available upon request submitted to the Bella Vista City Clerk. 



Bella Vista City Council Regular Meeting – August 24, 2015 – 6:30PM 

Meeting Called to order by Mayor Peter Christie at 6:30PM 

Invocation given by Chaplain Bob Box, Bella Vista Police Department 

Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

City Clerk Jertson called the Roll of Council: Alderman Morgan, Flynn, Wozniak, Anderson, King present. 
Alderman Wilson was absent due to illness. 

Citizen Input was next. The following individuals spoke on the indicated issues. 

Doug Swanson, 19 Holcombe Ln spoke in support of the Wonderland Cave Project. 

Dawn Harpell, 17 Miller Dr spoke about concerns about the conditions on Sunset Dr, Alice & Porch 
Circle, she has safety concerns about the growth along the road and the need for it to be addressed. 

Tony Licausi, 53 Sunderland Dr spoke in support of the Resolution to purchase Daffodil bulbs to be 
planted around city property. He talked about the “Bella Vista Daffodil” and as the president of the Bella 
Vista Garden Club pledged the support of the club in the planting of these bulbs.  

A.J. Morris, 31 Basore Dr, Jill Werner, 24 Hallock Dr, James Linden, 18 Holcomb Ln, Ashley Linden, 18 
Holcomb Lane, Sherry Rudasil, 35 Westbury Dr, Wally Sheldon, 1 Bladow Ln, & Mary Miller, 12 
Holcombe all spoke in favor of the Wonderland Cave project and the positive impact it will bring to the 
community. Mary Miller as one of the owners of the cave spoke about what the project will contain and 
the vision that they have for the project. 

Wendi Scoggins, 2 Hampton Ln spoke in support of the Hole in the Wall annexation. They are owners of 
the property. In addition she spoke in favor of the Wonderland Cave project as well.  

Next item of business was the approval of the minutes from the July 27, 2015 Council meeting. Motion 
was made by Alderman Anderson, seconded by Alderman Morgan to approve as presented. Vote by 
show of hands resulted in passage 5 ayes, 0 nays. 

Mayor Christie then went over the July financials for the city which follow. 

Revenue General Operating $21K F 

• State Turnback $46K F; Sales tax $46K F; Ambulance Revenue $43K F; Hazmat – 
Annual County Contract $6K F for total of $141K F offset against $112K U Property 
Tax. 

• YTD Revenue variance is $1.143M F 

 Street Fund $3K U 

• State Turnback $18K F; County Turnback $21K U. 

Expenses General Operating $260K F 

• Fire Dept. $128K F; Police Department $103K F (NOTE: Three new Tahoes are on 
backorder); Planning Dept. $23K F; Library $7K F for a total of $261K 



• YTD Expense variance is $742K F 

Street Fund $750K F 

• Contract $1,001 F (Street Resurfacing is in one month behind due to weather. We 
will realize this expense in August); Equipment & Capital expense >$1,000 was 
$201K U (Was budgeted in June). 

Reserves $8.5M  

 

A motion was made by Alderman Flynn, seconded by Alderman Wozniak to Suspend the Rules and read 
all Ordinances and Resolutions by Title only. Roll Call Vote resulted in 5:ayes, 0: nays.  

The first Ordinance was read in title by the Mayor; 

ORDINANCE NO 2015-17- AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA BY ADDING 
ARTICLE III VEHICLE TOWING TO CHAPTER 26 TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES TO COMPLY WITH STATE LAW 
CONCERNING THE ANNUAL REPORTING OF TOWING AND STORAGE RATES. Third Reading. 

Motion to adopt by Alderman Anderson, second by Alderman Wozniak. Vote was Ayes: 5, Nays: 
0 Ordinance adopted. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015 -AMENDING SECTION 20-3 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA 
VISTA  TO MODIFY THE PERMISSIBLE TIME PERIODS FOR USAGE OF FIREWORKS, AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES. Second Reading.  

There were no comments on this so it will move to 3rd reading. 

ORDINANCE NO 2015-18- AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO 
RENAME THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND CODE ENFORCEMENT TO THE DEPARTMENT OF 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES. 

A motion to suspend the rules and move to 3rd and final reading was made by Alderman King, second by 
Alderman Flynn. Roll call vote, Ayes: 5, Nays: 0. The Mayor then read the title for the final time. At that 
point a Motion was made by Alderman Flynn, second by Alderman King to adopt. Roll call vote was, Ayes: 
5, Nays: 0 Ordinance Adopted. 

ORDINANCE NO 2015- AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO MODIFY 
THE HOURS OF PERMISSIBLE DOOR-TO-DOOR SOLICITATION TO BRING PROVISIONS WITHIN 
CONSTITUTIONAL LIMITS. 

Attorney Kelley spoke to the reasons for this Ordinance to match with a ruling in the 8th Circuit Court of 
Appeals. It addresses the time allowed for Door to Door sales within the city. Door to door must be allowed 
until 9:00PM.  Alderman Morgan expressed dislike for this change. There being no further comment this 
will move to second reading at the Sept. meeting. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015- AMENDING SECTION 6-2 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA 
VISTA TO MODIFY THE REFERENDUM PERIOD FOR ORDINANCES TO SIXTY (60) DAYS FOR ALL NON-BOND 



ISSUE ORDINANCES AND THIRTY (30) DAYS FOR ALL BOND ISSUE ORDINANCES, DECLARING AND 
EMERGENCY, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

Again Attorney Kelley explained the need to enact this change in order to put us in compliance with state 
law.  This will move to second reading at the next meeting. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-19- ANNEXING LANDS COMPLETELY SURROUNDED BY THE MUNICIPAL LIMITS OF 
BELLA VISTA AND THE CITY OF GRAVETTE, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

This is the Hole in the Wall property. Motion was made to move to third and final reading for this 
Ordinance. Motion by Alderman Wozniak, second by Alderman Morgan, roll call vote Ayes: 5, Nays: 0 
Motion carried. The Mayor then read for the final time and a motion was made to adopt by Alderman 
Wozniak, second by Alderman King. Roll call vote was taken. Ayes: 5, Nays: 0, Ordinance adopted. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-20- ACCEPTING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CITY OF BELLA 
VISTA, ARKANSAS, MAKING SAME A PART OF THE CITY, AND ASSIGNING SAME TO WARDS AND ZONING 
DISTRICTS. 

This is the Wonderland Cave area. A motion was made by Alderman Morgan, second by Alderman 
Wozniak to move to third and final reading. Roll call vote, Ayes: 5, Nays: 0 Carried. The Mayor then read 
the Ordinance for the 3rd and final time. A motion was made by Alderman Wozniak, second by Alderman 
Morgan to adopt the Ordinance. Roll call vote. Ayes: 5, Nays: 0 Ordinance adopted. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-21- ACCEPTING AND CONFIRMING EASMENTS DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC AND 
FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

This is for a lot split. Motion to move to third and final reading by Alderman Flynn, second by Alderman 
Anderson. Roll call vote resulted in Ayes: 5, Nays: 0. The Ordinance was read for the third and final reading. 
A motion was made by Alderman Wozniak, second by Alderman Flynn. Vote was Ayes: 5, Nays: 0 

Resolution R2015-50- APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT CONTRACT 
WITH NABHOLZ CONSTRUCTION FOR GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICING FOR THE STREET DEPARTMENT 
FACILITY, AMENDING THE CAPITAL BUILDING BUDGET, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

This motion was moved by Alderman Wozniak, second by Alderman Flynn. Vote was Ayes: 5, Nays: 0 
Resolution adopted. 

Resolution R2015-51- AMENDING THE 2015 CITY BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE AN ADDITIONAL TOTAL OF 
$59,000.00 FROM GENERAL FUND RESERVES TO FUND ADDITIONAL SNOW REMOVAL EQUIPMENT, AND 
TO AUTHORIZE AND FUND THREE (3) ADDITIONAL STREET DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES. 

The Mayor explained the reason for this Resolution and what it will accomplish. A motion was made by 
Alderman Anderson, second by Alderman Wozniak. Ayes: 5, Nays: 0 Adopted. 

Resolution R2015-52- AMENDING THE 2015 CITY BUDGET TO TRANSFER $15,000.00 FROM PLANNING 
DEPARTMENT ACCT. 15-57000 TO THE POLICE DEPARTMENT FOR SALARIES AND BENEFITS, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF TWO ADDITIONAL POSITIONS (PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS OFFICER 
(SWORN POSITION) AND PROPERTY CLERK NON-SWORN POSITION) FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT. 



This Resolution was explained and the Mayor spoke about where this money is coming from. There were 
no questions. A motion was made Alderman Wozniak, second by Alderman Morgan, Ayes: 5, Nays: 0 

Resolution R2015-53- AMENDING THE 2015 CITY BUDGET TO TRANSFER $7,000.00 FROM PLANNING 
DEPARTMENT ACCT 15-57000 INTO 53700 BUDGET ACCOUNTS TO FUND THE PURCHASE OF 
APPROXIMATELY 9500 DAFFODIL BULBS FOR PURPOSES OF A CITY BEAUTIFICATION INITIATIVE. 

The discussion of where this money is coming from was held and a questions about the on-going issue of 
maintenance of these daffodils by Alderman Wozniak and Alderman Morgan was asked and Bella Vista 
Garden Club President Tony Licausi responded. Alderman Flynn commented that when he arrived at the 
meeting and saw all the cars, he wondered what people might be upset about and was pleased that they 
were all here to support the issues at hand. He also commented that the addition of the daffodil beds will 
be a positive thing for the community and was grateful to the Garden Club for stepping up to assist this 
project.  A motion was made by Alderman Flynn, second by Alderman King to approve.  Ayes: 5, Nays: 0 

Resolution R2015-54- AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH 
AMERICAN FIDELITY ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES, LLC FOR THE PROVISION OF REPORTING AND TRACKING 
SERVICES REQUIRED BY THE PATIENT PROTECTION AND AFFORDABLE CARE ACT. 

The Mayor explained to the public that this is a by-product of the law commonly referred to as 
“Obamacare”. There was a motion by Alderman Anderson, second by Alderman Wozniak. Ayes: 5 Nays:0 
Resolution adopted. 

Resolution R2015-55- AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH 
PINNACLE PROPANE FOR THE PURCHASE OF PROPANE GAS FOR CITY FACILITIES IN THE AMOUNT OF $.879 
per GALLON FOR 2000 GALLONS AND $.979 PER GALLON FOR THE REMAINING 8000 GALLONS. 

Mayor Christie explained this purchase and talked about an improvement that was made at Fire Station 2 
that will lower the need for Propane for the coming year. A motion was made by Alderman Wozniak, 
second by Alderman King to approve. Ayes: 5, Nays: 0 Adopted. 

Resolution R2015-56- ESTABLISHING A POLICY CONCERNING MAYOR’S EXPENSES RELATED TO LOCAL 
MEETINGS OR GATHERINGS ATTENDED FOR A PUBLIC PURPOSE. 

The Mayor talked about the need for this policy to accurately track any expenses that the Mayor may have 
regarding attendance at local area meetings. This was a suggestion of the Auditors that visited the city 
recently. A motion was made by Alderman Flynn, second by Alderman Morgan. Ayes: 5, Nays: 0 

Resolution R2015- Condemning And Ordering The Razing And Removal Of A Dilapidated, Unsafe, And 
Nuisance Structure Owned By Robert Lee Jackson Located At 9276 Suits Us Drive In The City Of Bella Vista. 

The Mayor opened a Public Hearing on this issue. Planner Chris Suneson spoke about the reason they put 
this request in place before the Council. He talked about the history of the issues with this property. He 
stressed the safety problems that the property condition represents. The property owner Robert Lee 
Jackson was in attendance and asked to be allowed to speak on his behalf as to his plans and why he 
would like this Resolution to be postponed. Much discussion took place. Many questions were asked by 
the Council and responded to by Mr. Jackson. Planner Suneson responded to many of the comments made 
by Mr. Jackson. Public Hearing was closed. 



Alderman King made a motion to table this issue until the next regular City Council meeting. This was 
seconded by Alderman Morgan.  Alderman Anderson told Mr. Jackson that this very likely would be the 
last extension he would be given. He hoped that Mr. Jackson understood this. A vote was taken. Roll Call 
Vote: Alderman Wozniak –No, Alderman Anderson- Yes, Alderman King- Yes, Alderman Morgan- Yes, 
Alderman Flynn- No.  The vote was 3 in favor, 2 opposed. The Mayor choose not to vote so that the motion 
failed. 

At this point the Mayor again read the Resolution and asked for a motion. Motion was made by Alderman 
Flynn to adopt. Second by Alderman Wozniak. Vote was taken, Alderman Morgan, No, Alderman Flynn- 
Yes, Alderman Wozniak- Yes, Alderman Anderson- No, Alderman King- No. The motion failed by a vote of 
3 nays and 2 ayes.  Resolution defeated. 

 

 

MEETINGS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
• The next City Council Work Session will be Monday Sept. 21, 2015 @ 

5:30PM in the City Hall Conference Room. 
• The next Regular meeting of the City Council, Monday Sept. 28, 2015 at 6:30 

PM at the Bella Vista American Legion Hall. 
• Planning Commission Work Session will be Wednesday Sept. 2, 2015 at 

4:00PM in the City Hall conference room. 
• Planning Commission Regular Meeting will be Sept. 14, 2015 at 6:30PM in 

the City Hall Conference room. 
• Public Safety Committee Meeting will be Sept. 9, 2015 at 9:00AM in the City 

Hall Conference room. 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT- Meeting adjourned at 8:08 
 

 

 

 

City Clerk Wayne Jertson      Mayor Peter Christie 

 

 



BELLA VISTA CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING – SEPTEMBER 14, 2015  

MINUTES 

Mayor Christie called the meeting to order at 5:00PM 

Roll Call: Alderman Morgan, Alderman Flynn, Alderman Wozniak, Alderman Anderson, Alderman King 
present. Alderman Wilson absent due to illness. 

Mayor Christie read the following Resolution; 

RESOLUTION R2015-57- AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO A GUARANTEED 
MAXIMUM PRICE AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT CONTRACT WITH CLINARD 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,250,000.00 FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 
FIRE STATION NO. 4 

Discussion was held on the issue. Chief Sims went through the process that was used to get to this point 
on the building of this Fire Station. Mr. Clinard also commented on the bids that comprise this 
“maximum price agreement.” 

Alderman Anderson asked a couple of questions about the management costs. Alderman King asked 
about cultured marble. The reasons were explained as to the use of materials. 

Chief Sims said it is built for 6 people and a life of 30 years plus. There is provision for future expansion if 
needed. 

Alderman Flynn moved approval of the motion, It was seconded by Alderman King. Roll call vote 
resulted in passage by a vote of 5 Ayes, 0 Nays. 

Alderman Wozniak commented on the upcoming request from the Museum. Wayne Calhoun will be at 
the Work Session on the 21st, to discuss their request for the City’s assistance. 

Meeting was adjourned at 5:09PM. 

 

 

Wayne Jertson, City Clerk     Peter Christie, Mayor 

 

 



Financials for month ending August 2015



0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

Do
lla

rs

Month

Revenue

Gen Budg. Gen Act Srt. Budg Str Act



0.00

200.00

400.00

600.00

800.00

1,000.00

1,200.00

1,400.00

Do
lla

rs

Month

Expenses

Gen Budg Gen Act Str Budg Str Act



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AMENDING SECTION 20-3 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO MODIFY THE PERMISSIBLE TIME 
PERIODS FOR USAGE OF FIREWORKS, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
 

 WHEREAS, Section 20-3 provides that fireworks may only be used or exploded during 
the Fourth of July period from June 27 through July 11; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this is a significantly longer period of time than is permitted by surrounding 
communities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Bella Vista desires to bring its time restrictions for the usage of 
fireworks to a period more in line with surrounding communities; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  Subsection (b) of Section 20-3 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Bella 
Vista, Arkansas is hereby amended so that after amendment, the subsection shall read as follows: 

 
“(b)  On the dates of July 3 through July 5 between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 12:00 
midnight and on December 31 beginning at 6:00 p.m. through 1:00 a.m. on January 
1 of each year, the use of fireworks shall be permitted, with the exception of any 
aerial fireworks device attached to a stick commonly referred to as a “bottle rocket,” 
or any other similar device, regardless of its name.” 

 
 
 PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF __________________________, 2015. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 



2 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
JASON KELLEY 
STAFF ATTORNEY 
 
Requested by:  Mayor         
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 



ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BELLA 
VISTA TO MODIFY THE HOURS OF PERMISSIBLE DOOR-TO-DOOR 
SOLICITATION TO BRING PROVISIONS WITHIN CONSTITUTIONAL 
LIMITS 
 

 WHEREAS, current City ordinance prohibits door-to-door solicitation between the hours 
of 7:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m.; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit, which includes Arkansas, 
has determined that hour limits more restrictive than 9:00 p.m. to 9:00 a.m. violate the First 
Amendment; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  Section 16-22 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas 
is hereby amended so that, after amendment, the section shall read as follows: 
 

 
“Sec. 16-22.  Entrance to premises. 
 
 Except as otherwise provided by law, it shall be unlawful for any individual 
conducting door-to-door selling or soliciting to enter upon any private premises, 
between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m., for any purpose described in section 
16-21.” 

 
 PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF __________________________, 2015. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 
 
Requested by:  Mayor         
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AMENDING SECTION 6-2 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF BELLA VISTA TO MODIFY THE REFERENDUM PERIOD FOR 
ORDINANCES TO SIXTY (60) DAYS FOR ALL NON-BOND ISSUE 
ORDINANCES AND THIRTY (30) DAYS FOR ALL BOND ISSUE 
ORDINANCES, DECLARING AND EMERGENCY, AND FOR OTHER 
PURPOSES 
 

 WHEREAS, Act 1093 of 2015 amended the law concerning municipal referendum 
petitions by mandating a sixty (60) day referendum period for any issue not involving a municipal 
bond; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Bella Vista desires to bring its ordinances into accord with state 
law on the subject; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  Subsection (a) of Section 6-2 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Bella 
Vista, Arkansas is hereby amended so that, after amendment, the subsection shall read as follows: 

 
“(a)  All referendum petitions under Amendment 7 to the state constitution, except 
those concerning a municipal bond, must be filed with the City Clerk within sixty 
(60) days after passage of such ordinance, or other referable measure.  All 
referendum petitions under Amendment 7 to the state constitution concerning a 
municipal bond must be filed with the City Clerk within thirty (30) days after 
passage of such ordinance, or other referable measure.” 

 
 SECTION 2:  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  The need to clarify the referendum period for 
ordinances of the City is necessary to preserve the public peace, health and safety.  Therefore, an 
emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this Ordinance shall take immediate full force and effect 
from and after the date of its approval. 
 
 
 PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF __________________________, 2015. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 



2 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
JASON KELLEY 
STAFF ATTORNEY 
 
Requested by:  Mayor         
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 



ORDINANCE NO __________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

WAIVING THE REQUIREMENTS OF FORMAL COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF STREET SALT AND SAND BASED ON PRICE 

AND AVAILABILITY BY INFORMAL PRICE QUOTES 
 

WHEREAS, the procurement of sand and salt for street treatment of icy conditions is 
necessary for the health, public safety and welfare of the citizens of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, formal competitive bidding of salt and sand is not feasible or practical due to 
a lack of potential bidders due to restricted availability of such products for delivery to the City; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is anticipated that more than $20,000.00 worth of salt and sand are 
necessary for City needs through the winter season of 2015-2016; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  The City Council of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas hereby determines 
that the above circumstances make formal competitive bidding not feasible or practical and 
therefore waives the requirement of formal competitive bidding and authorizes the Mayor to 
purchase street salt and sand based on price and availability by informal price quotes through 
March 2016. 
 

PASSED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________________, 20______. 
 

        
APPROVED: 

 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 
 



City of Bella Vista   
ORDINANCE No. ___________  

2 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
JASON KELLEY 
STAFF ATTORNEY 
 
 
  
Requested by:  Mayor         
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 

 



Exhibit A 

 

INVESTMENT POLICY 

 Arkansas law dictates the available investments permitted to be used by cities for their funds.  Ark. Code Ann. § 19-1-
504 provides that when approved by a municipal depository board, a city treasurer may convert any funds in the treasurer’s 
possession, or under the treasurer’s control, into one (1) or more of the following investments: 

1. Eligible investment securities having a maturity of not longer than five (5) years from the date of acquisition unless, as 
documented at the time of acquisition, the investment is to fund or support a specific purpose and there are no expectations that the 
investment will be sold before maturity.  “Eligible investment securities” means a direct or guaranteed obligation of the United 
States that is backed by the full faith and credit of the United States Government; a direct obligation of an agency, instrumentality, 
or government-sponsored enterprise created by act of the United States Congress and authorized to issue securities or evidences of 
indebtedness, regardless of whether the securities or evidences of indebtedness are guaranteed for payment by the United States 
Government; and a bond or other debt of the State of Arkansas, a school district, a county government, a municipal government, 
or an authority of a governmental entity that is issued for an essential governmental purpose or is guaranteed by a state agency and 
has a debt rating from a nationally recognized credit rating agency of “A” or better at the time of purchase. 

2. Certificates of Deposit. 

3. An account established by a local government joint investment trust authorized under the Local Government Joint 
Investment Trust Act, Ark. Code Ann. § 19-8-301 et seq. 

4. An Arkansas financial institution repurchase agreement for eligible investment securities in which the seller agrees to 
repurchase the investment at a price including interest earned during the holding period as determined by the repurchase agreement. 

 Additionally, Ark. Code Ann. § 19-8-111 provides that city funds may be deposited in one or more banks or savings and 
loan associations located in the United States, so long as the account is FDIC insured for one hundred percent (100%) of the 
principal and accrued interest of the deposit, and that other banking requirements are met. 

 When Arkansas cities have a real property assessed valuation in excess of three hundred million dollars 
($300,000,000.00) they are also permitted to invest city funds in certain securities as provided in Ark. Code Ann. § 23-47-401, 
pursuant to the city’s adopted investment policy.  In addition, the five (5) year maturity limit provided in Ark. Code Ann. § 19-1-
504 no longer applies, and the city may invest funds for a longer period.  In making such an investment, state law requires that each 
investment be made with the judgment and care under prevailing circumstances that a person of prudence, discretion, and 
intelligence would exercise in the management of the person’s own affairs, not for speculation but for investment, considering the 
probably safety of the capital and the probable income to be derived.  Investment of such funds must be governed by the following 
investment objectives:   

1.  Preservation and safety of the principal;  

2.  Liquidity; and  

3.  Yield. 

 In light of these state law requirements, it is the policy of the City of Bella Vista for the Treasurer working with City 
Administration to make use of any and all alternatives for the investment of city funds permitted by state law and as further may 
be authorized by the municipal depository board, when or if required. 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

ESTABLISHING AN INVESTMENT POLICY FOR THE CITY 
 

  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA, 

ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  The City Council of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas hereby establishes an 
Investment Policy for the City.  A copy of the Policy is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A” 
and incorporated herein as if set out word for word. 
 
 
 PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF __________________________, 2015. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
JASON KELLEY 
STAFF ATTORNEY 
 
 
  
Requested by:  Mayor         
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 



















BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
BELLA VISTA, AR 

    
 
  
MEETING DATE: September 28, 2015 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Mutual Aid Agreement – Bentonville Police Department    
 
ITEM TITLE: Mutual Aid Agreement    
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Ken Farmer 
 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION:   We would like to enter into a mutual aid agreement with 
Bentonville Police Department.  It is important to maintain agreements with neighboring agencies 
to provide additional manpower or assistance during disasters, exigent circumstances, joint 
operations and training.  The attached agreement was approved by the Bentonville City Council at 
their meeting on September 8, 2015. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: ORDINANCE      RESOLUTION    X    OTHER  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Mutual Aid Police Protection Agreement 

This Agreement, by and between the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas, and the City of Bentonville, 
Arkansas, in accordance with A.C.A. § 16-81-106 et seq., to secure and provide for each adequate 
police protection through the use of properly trained and equipped police officers, mutual aid in 
police protection, and protection of life and property. It is agreed that: 

I. Introduction 

A. The City of Bella Vista and the City of Bentonville recognize and acknowledge 
that, at times, emergency or other situations arise that require additional 
manpower and resources beyond which the respective law enforcement agency for 
each City can provide. It is during such times that it may be prudent and 
necessary to request additional manpower or assistance from other law enforcement 
agencies. 

II. Requests for the City of Bella Vista 

A. During natural or man-made disasters, exigent circumstances, joint operations, 
and training, the City of Bella Vista will provide assistance to the City of 
Bentonville according to the guidelines as set forth in this Mutual Aid Police 
Protection Agreement. Requests for mutual aid must be made in writing by the 
Bentonville Police Department Chief of Police, or by his or her authorized 
designee. Any request for aid under this Agreement will include a statement of the 
amount and type of equipment and personnel requested, and will specify the 
location to which the equipment and personnel are to be dispatched; 
however, the amount of and type of equipment and number of personnel to 
be furnished will be determined by the officer in charge of the responding 
organization. 

B. The Bella Vista Police Department Chief of Police will decide what resources 
are available to the requesting agency and will authorize the level of response to 
be provided, as well as the duration of aid to be provided. This response may 
include, but is not limited to, manpower, vehicles, equipment or other police 
resources. In the event that an exigent situation should arise within the jurisdiction 
of the City of Bella Vista that would necessitate such action, the City of Bella 
Vista reserves the right to refuse to respond to any request for mutual aid when, 
in the opinion of the Mayor of Bella Vista or of its Chief of Police, responding 
to such a request would jeopardize municipal property or would endanger the 
lives or property of the citizens of the City of Bella Vista; additionally, the 
City of Bella Vista reserves the right to recall immediately any or all of the 
manpower, vehicles, equipment or other police resources on loan to another 
agency, if, in the opinion of the Mayor of Bella Vista or of its Chief of Police, 
that to do otherwise would jeopardize municipal property or would endanger 
the lives or property of the citizens of the City of Bella Vista. 



C. The City of Bentonville must sign or have previously signed a Mutual Aid 
Police Protection Agreement with the City of Bella Vista. 

III. Supervision and Control of Officers on Loan to the City of Bentonville 

A. Officers from the Bella Vista Police Department that are temporarily assigned 
to the Bentonville Police Department under mutual aid police 
protection provisions are subject to the same rules, regulations, and supervisory 
commands as Bentonville Police Department officers. They will possess the 
same powers, rights and immunities as Bentonville Police Department officers. 

B. Personnel and administrative control, including compensation of Bella Vista 
officers, will be retained by the City of Bella Vista and the Bella Vista Police 
Department. Bella Vista police officers will be entitled to worker's 
compensation and other benefits to which they would be entitled were they 
functioning within the normal course and scope of the duties with the 
Bella Vista Police Department. 

IV. Requests by the Bella Vista Police Department 

A. During natural or man-made disasters, exigent circumstances, joint operations, 
and training, the City of Bentonville will provide assistance to the City of 
Bella Vista according to the guidelines as set forth in this Mutual Aid Police 
Protection Agreement. Requests for mutual aid must be made in writing by the 
Bella Vista Police Department Chief of Police, or by his or her authorized 
designee. Any request for aid under this Agreement will include a statement of 
the amount and type of equipment and personnel requested, and will specify 
the location to which the equipment and personnel are to be dispatched 
however, the amount of and type of equipment and number of personnel 
to be furnished will be determined by the officer in charge of the 
responding organization. 

B. The Bentonville Police Department Chief of Police will decide what resources 
are available to the requesting agency and will authorize the level of response to 
be provided, as well as the duration of aid to be provided. This response may 
include, but is not limited to, manpower, vehicles, equipment or other police 
resources. In the event that an exigent situation should arise within the 
jurisdiction of the City of Bentonville that would necessitate such action, 
the City of Bentonville reserves the right to refuse to respond to any request 
for mutual aid when, in the opinion of the Mayor of Bentonville or of its 
Chief of Police, responding to such a request would jeopardize municipal 
property or would endanger the lives or property of the citizens of the 
City of Bentonville; additionally, the City of Bentonville reserves the right to 
recall immediately any or all of the manpower, vehicles, equipment or other 
police resources on loan to another agency, if, in the opinion of the Mayor of 
B en ton vi 11 e or of its Chief of Police, that to do otherwise would 



jeopardize municipal property or would endanger the lives or property of the 
citizens of the City of Bentonville. 

C. The City of Bella Vista must sign or have previously signed a Mutual Aid Police 
Protection Agreement with the City of Bentonville. 

V. Supervision and Control of Officers on Loan to the City of Bella Vista 

A. Officers from the Bentonville Police Department that are temporarily 
assigned to the Bella Vista Police Department under mutual aid 
police protection provisions are subject to the same rules, regulations, 
and supervisory commands as Bella Vista Police Department officers. 
They will possess the same powers, rights and immunities as Bella Vista 
Police Department officers. 

B. Personnel and administrative control, including compensation of 
Bentonville Police Department officers, will be retained by the City of 
Bentonville and the Bentonville Police Department. Bentonville police 
officers will be entitled to worker's compensation and other benefits to 
which they would be entitled were they functioning within the normal 
course and scope of the duties with the Bentonville Police Department. 

VI. Mutual Aid Police Protection Agreement 

A. Pursuant to Act 846 of 1989, codified at A.C.A. § 16-81-106 et. seq., the 
City of Bella Vista and the City of Bentonville, having each created 
police departments and having employed police officers of these 
respective municipalities that are sworn to enforce the laws of this 
state and their individual jurisdictions, do hereby enter into this 
MUTUAL AID POLICE PROTECTION AGREEMENT as allowed by 
Act 846 and their individual municipal policies. This Mutual Aid Police 
Protection Agreement shall be construed to grant to Bentonville Police 
Department officers and Bella Vista Police Department officers the statewide 
arrest powers authorized by A.C.A. § 16-81-1 06(c)(3) while working pursuant 
to this Agreement within the jurisdiction of the requesting city. 

B. In the event of claims for injury or other loss said to be the result of acts or 
omissions by an officer, or officers, providing assistance pursuant to this 
Mutual Aid Police Protection Agreement, the agency and municipality 
providing such assistance shall provide a legal defense for and shall hold 
harmless the receiving agency, its officer(s), and municipality from and against all 
such claims. Both cities assert any an::i all tre irrnmmities p:ovidfrl to tlm1 an:l/cr trer o:fficers 
urrler Atkanscf; or Fecb'al Law and neither waives it as a consequence of the above 



language. This hold harmless agreement is subject to the limitations of Arkansas 
law and such agreement is not intended to inure to the benefit of any third party nor 
should it be interpreted as a basis for municipal liability for which the municipality 
is otherwise immune under Arkansas law. 

C. This MUTUAL AID POLICE PROTECTION AGREEMENT may be 
reviewed annually. Should any paragraph or part of this MUTUAL 
AID POLICE PROTECTION AGREEMENT be found unconstitutional 
or unlawful, the remainder shall remain in full force and effect. 

D. This Agreement is in effect from its date of approval by the governing bodies 
of each municipality, and will remain in effect until cancellation in writing by 
one or both parties. 

E. Either party may terminate this agreement upon ten (1 0) days' notice in writing 
to the other municipality through the Chief of each respective Police 
Department. 

Witness our hands: 

-~~ 
Mayor, City OfBentonville 
Bentonville, Arkansas 

Date 

Date 

Mayor, City ofBella Vista 
Bella Vista, Arkansas 

Date 

Police Chief, City of Bella Vista 
Arkansas 

Date 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

APPROVING A LAW ENFORCEMENT MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA POLICE DEPARTMENT AND 
THE CITY OF BENTONVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 

  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA, 

ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  The City Council of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas hereby approves a 
Mutual Aid Agreement between the City of Bella Vista Police Department and the City of 
Bentonville Police Department to facilitate cooperation, additional manpower and assistance 
during disasters, exigent circumstances, joint operations and training.  A copy of the agreement is 
attached to this resolution as if set out word for word herein. 
 
 
 PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF __________________________, 2015. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
JASON KELLEY 
STAFF ATTORNEY 
 
 
  
Requested by:  Mayor         
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 



BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
BELLA VISTA, AR 

    
 
  
MEETING DATE: September 28, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
AGENDA ITEM:     
 
ITEM TITLE: A Resolution Condemning and Ordering the Razing and Removal of a Dilapidated, 

Unsafe, and Nuisance Structure Owned by Robert Lee Jackson 
located at 9276 Suits Us Drive in the City of Bella Vista   

 
SUBMITTED BY: Christopher Suneson, PLA   
 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION:   In February of this year, Code Enforcement personnel sent notice 
to the subject property owner requesting removal unsightly and unsanitary building materials. 
After failing to remove the nuisance materials and proper notice, the Department authorized a 
contractor to remove them. Those charges were certified by the City Council in June for collection 
by the Benton County Collector. 
 
During subsequent site visits, Departmental personnel observed concerns about the structural 
integrity of the residence. The below photographs were captured showing the condition of the 
dilapidated structure: 

 
Figure 1: Southernmost exterior wall, showing fire damage and structural sag and distress of roof members. 



 
Figure 2: Lower portion of the southern most wall, kicked out and not supporting loads. It appears ready to 
collapse. 
 

 
Figure 3: Interior wall in from the southern exterior wall with bowing evident. The lower part of this walls 
forms the upper support for an exterior wall. 
 
 



 
Figure 4: Upper portion of the interior wall from Figure 3. Fire and continual weathering has deteriorated this 
wall. 
 

 
Figure 5: Lower portion of exterior wall from Figure 4 with lots of fire damage including charred supports for 
the interior walls. 



 
Figure 6: Front of structure, with moss growing on roofing and vines sprouting from the rock chimney. 
Vegetative growth like this causes damage to important structural elements. 
 
In early July, the Department posted an “Unsafe” for entry sign on the property due to the 
foregoing structural concerns. The property owner has been notified that no further construction 
should be attempted until a qualified structural engineer has performed an analysis of the structure 
with recommendations to obtain a building permit. 
 
On August 21, 2015, Mr. Jackson had the structure inspected by a professional engineer, Mr. 
Gregory Bone, PE. Mr. Bone’s letter dated August 22, 2015, is attached for your reference. Mr. 
Bone states, in part: 
 

“It is my opinion that little of the existing structure can be restored to a safe and habitable condition. The 
cabin roof, walls and floor have been open to the elements for some time and the materials are severely 
deteriorated. The structure has been exposed to fire, is water damaged and the wood materials exhibit 
decay…I have recommended to the owner that he begin the inspection and removal process immediately and 
that plans and a permit application be submitted for new construction to the PBCE Department.”  

 
On August 24, 2015, the Council voted down a resolution to condemn the subject structure. In the 
mean time, Mr. Jackson has moved forward with securing the structure from entry as shown in the 
photo, below, taken by staff on August 31, 2015. 
 



 
Figure 7: Front window and door of structure secured. 
 
On September 11, 2015, Mr. Jackson called to discuss the property, and asked if it would be 
permissible to place palettes inside of the structure to block off access. He also mentioned that the 
Dean of the UA engineering school had come through the airport and said that the property would 
be a great project for one of his classes. Mr. Jackson was advised that he should not attempt any 
repairs to the structure until a report detailing the repairs had been filed with the Department and 
that a building permit had been issued. Mr. Jackson was told during the conversation that a stop 
work order was being issued to him, and that measured progress could be documented through the 
engineering report and subsequent issuance of a building permit. 
 
On Monday, September 21, 2015, Mr. Jackson called and indicated that he had worked at the 
property over the weekend. He related that an incident occurred that made him realize that the 
Department may have a point regarding the property and offered his apologies. Mr. Jackson 
inquired on the approach to obtaining a permit, and it was related that an engineering report 
describing the means and methods for demolition or reconstruction would need to be filed. After 
reviewing that document, the permit would be issued to him. Mr. Jackson was informed that if 
such a permit was obtained prior to the end of the week ending September 25, 2015, the 
Department would ask for the condemnation resolution to be removed from the agenda.  
 
On September 23, 2013, Mr. Jackson applied for a demolition permit without benefit of an 
engineering report due to the fact that he expressed his desire to retain some of the structure 
through such a process. 
 
ATTACHMENT: ORDINANCE  RESOLUTION     OTHER  
 
 



RECOMMENDATION:  The Department recommends that this structure be condemned and order 
its removal. Lacking any action by the owner of record within time frames established under state 
statute, the Department requests authority to raze and remove the structure.  
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 Motion to adopt  
 



11022 Timarron Drive                 (479) 903-2686                        Bentonville, AR  72712 
 

Gregory L. Bone, PE 
Civil & Structural Engineering  

 
August 22, 2015 

Mr. Christopher Suneson, Director 
Planning, Building Code Enforcement Department 
City of Bella Vista, Arkansas 
306 Town Center West 
Bella Vista, Arkansas  72714 
 
Property Owner: Mr. Robert Lee Jackson 
3455 Township Street 
Fayetteville, Arkansas  72703 
 
Re:  Property Structural Condition Assessment 
        9276 Suits Us Drive, Bella Vista, Arkansas  72714 
 
Mr. Suneson, 
 
At the request of Mr. Jackson I inspected the referenced property on Friday, August 21, 2015 
for the purpose of providing an opinion of structural condition.  I spoke briefly with Mr. Steve 
Cash by telephone about the permitting history of the property.  I have spoken extensively with 
the Owner about the extremely poor condition of the structure and the prospects for its repair 
and or replacement.   
 
It is my opinion that little of the existing structure can be restored to a safe and habitable 
condition.  The cabin roof, walls and floor have been open to the elements for some time and 
the materials are severely deteriorated.  The structure has been exposed to fire, is water 
damaged and the wood materials exhibit decay.  There is some possibility that the masonry 
fireplace could be retained and perhaps a small portion of the framing on the front of the cabin. 
I have recommended to the owner that he begin the inspection and removal process 
immediately and that plans and a permit application be submitted for new construction to the 
PBCE Department. 
 
Mr. Jackson has informed me that he intends to use Luttrell Construction to assist with the 
material removal and reconstruction of the cabin.  And he wishes to pursue registration of the 
structure on the Historic Register.  I will assist the owner and his contractor during the 
dismantling and provide any technical assistance as required for construction of the new 
residence.     
 
Mr. Jackson requests that the City of Bella Vista defer any condemnation action and allow him 
the opportunity to manage the inspection, removal, salvage and new construction.   
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions or concerns that you may have. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Gregory L. Bone, P.E. 
 
GLB/gb   
                   
                      August 22, 2015 



RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
  

 CONDEMNING AND ORDERING THE RAZING AND REMOVAL OF A DILAPIDATED, 
UNSAFE, AND NUISANCE STRUCTURE OWNED BY ROBERT LEE JACKSON 

LOCATED AT 9276 SUITS US DRIVE IN THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA 
 

  
 WHEREAS, Robert Lee Jackson is the record owner the real property 9276 Suits Us 

Drive in the City of Bella Vista, more particularly described as Benton County Parcel Number 
15-70154-000; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Bella Vista Ordinance No. 2008-18, notice was mailed to the 
owners, mortgagees and lienholders of the above-described property advising of the date, 
time and place of a public hearing and the consideration of this Resolution by the Bella Vista 
City Council; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Bella Vista City Council has conducted the public hearing to determine 
if the house, building and/or structure located on the affected property constitutes a nuisance. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS: 
  

Section 1: The property located at 9276 Suits Us Drive in the City of Bella Vista is 
hereby condemned and declared to be dilapidated, unsafe and a nuisance pursuant to Bella 
Vista City Ordinance No. 2008-18 due to the fact that the structure is exposed to the elements, 
structurally unsound, and poses a significant danger to the health and safety of any person 
who may enter it. Pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-56-203, the owners are directed and 
ordered to raze and remove the structure located at Lot 15, Block 5, of Bella Vista Original 
Subdivision along Visitor Center Drive. Pursuant to Bella Vista City Ordinance No. 2008-18, 
should said structure not be razed and removed within thirty (30) days after posting of this 
Resolution on the structure, the Building Inspector or his duly designated representative, is 
authorized to raze and remove the structure.  
 

Section 2: A true and correct certified copy of this Resolution shall be posted on the  
structure 9276 Suits Us Drive as well as mailed to all owners, mortgagees and lienholders of 
record as soon as reasonably possible. 

 
 

Passed and approved this ______ day of __________________, 2015.  
  
Motion to adopt made by:  
 Ayes:  
 Nays:  
 Motion    Ayes:   Nays:  
  
            APPROVED: 
 



 
     ____________________________ 
 Mayor Peter Christie 
ATTEST: 
 
       
________________________ 
Wayne Jertson 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
________________________ 
Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 
 
 Drafted by: Christopher Suneson, PLA, Director of Planning, Building and Code Enforcement   















BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
BELLA VISTA, AR 

    
 
  
MEETING DATE: September 28, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
AGENDA ITEM:          
 
ITEM TITLE: A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor and Clerk to Enter into a Contractor with 

Vancon Properties, LLC, for the Rental of Office Space for the City 
of Bella Vista Community Development Services Department for 
Calendar Year 2016, and for Other Purposes.   

 
SUBMITTED BY: Christopher Suneson, PLA  
 
SUMMARY EXPLANATION:   Since January 2012, the Community Development Services 
Department has leased office space at 305-306 Town Center from Cooper Communities and 
subleased a portion of that space to the Architectural Control Committee. 

Since that time, the Department has hired additional personnel leading to cramp office 
accommodations. The Department has established its own records of construction and 
development permitting that has added file storage to those maintained by the Architectural 
Control Committee. Lastly, with the hiring of personnel and expanded patron base, parking needs 
have increased over the years. 

The office space at 614-616 West Lancashire is currently vacant and has ample parking. Working 
with the owner, the Departmental staff has provided a floor plan for renovations that will 
accommodate existing and planned staffing for the foreseeable future. The layout also provides for 
existing and future growth of file storage. 

The resolution following would authorize the Mayor and Clerk to enter into a lease arrangement 
with the owner at a yearly rate of $25,800 – approximately $50 more than the Department pays for 
office space currently. This cost would be identified in the 2016 Departmental Budget. 

In addition, the resolution authorizes the expenditure of no more than $28,500 for lease hold 
improvements to the office space to accommodate the proposed floorplan. These costs would be 
paid for through savings in the 2015 Departmental Budget. 

 
ATTACHMENT: ORDINANCE  RESOLUTION     OTHER  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The administration is recommending approval of this resolution. 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 Motion to adopt   































RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CLERK TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH 
VANCON PROPERTIES, LLC, FOR THE RENTAL OF OFFICE SPACE FOR THE 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2016, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Bella Vista has leased office spacing for the Community 
Development Services Department since January 2012; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Department has outgrown its current space at 305-306 Town 
Center due to increased staffing, file storage, and parking needs. 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA, 
ARKANSAS: 
 
 Section 1:  The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute a contract 
with Vancon Properties for the lease of office space at 614 and 616 West Lancashire 
Boulevard for the period beginning January 1, 2016 to December 31, 2016 at a monthly 
rate of $2,150.00 or $25,800.00 yearly.  The Mayor and Clerk are further authorized to 
expend a maximum amount of $28,500.00 for leasehold improvements to the office 
space. 
 

Section 2: The amount of the monthly lease for the office space will be properly 
identified in the 2016 Community Development Services Department budget. 

 
Section 3: The amount of the leasehold improvements to the office space will be 

paid for through cost savings in the 2015 Community Development Services 
Department budget. 

 
 
Passed and approved this ______ day of __________________, 2015.  
  
Motion to adopt made by:  
 Ayes:  
 Nays:  
 Motion    Ayes:   Nays:  
  
            APPROVED: 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Mayor Peter Christie 
  



ATTEST: 
 
       
________________________ 
Wayne Jertson 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       
________________________ 
Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 
 
Prepared by: Christopher Suneson, PLA, Director of Community Development Services 



Memorandum 
September 17, 2015 

To: Mayor Peter Christie and Bella Vista City Council 

From: Mike Button, City of Bella Vista Street Superintendent 

RE: Bid Award for Snow Removal Equipment 

    Snow removal equipment was bid out as four different line items which included the following 
categories:  

1. (1) one Salt/Sand Spreader (item A): This is for the refurbished dump truck 
2. (1) one Snow Plow (item B): This is for the refurbished dump truck  
3. (2) two Salt/Sand Spreaders (item C): This is for two refurbished ¾ ton pickups 
4. (2) two Snow Plows (item D): This is for two refurbished ¾ ton pickups 

   Vendors could bid on all or any portion thereof of said equipment and all specifications were met by 
these vendors with the exception of the line item two where only one vendor satisfied that particular 
specification. 

   I recommend the following bid awards as follows: 

Line item 1. Award bid to Scott Equipment In the amount of $11,286.43 

Line item 2. Award bid to Bus Andrews Equipment in the amount of $10,350.00 

Line item 3. Award bid to Hilbilt Sales in the amount of $9,517.62 

Line item 4. Award bid to Johnson Truck and Trailer in the amount of $8,069.63 

   Total of all snow removal equipment combined equals $39,223.68, the approved budget for said 
equipment equaled $40,000.00  

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Mike Button 

City of Bella Vista Street Superintendent, 

 

  

 





 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 
 

CITY OF BELLA VISTA, ARKANSAS 
 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO 
CONTRACTS WITH SCOTT EQUIPMENT, BUS ANDREWS 
EQUIPMENT, INC., HILBILT SALES, AND JOHNSON TRUCK & 
TRAILER OF LOWELL FOR THE PURCHASE OF SNOW REMOVAL 
EQUIPMENT IN A TOTAL AMOUNT OF $39,223.68 FOR USE BY THE 
STREET DEPARTMENT 
 

  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELLA VISTA, 

ARKANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1:  The City Council of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas hereby authorizes the 
Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a contract with Scott Equipment for the purchase of one (1) 
salt/sand spreader for a dump truck in the amount of $11,286.43 for usage as snow removal 
equipment by the Street Department. 
 
 SECTION 2:  The City Council of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas hereby authorizes the 
Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a contract with Bus Andrews Equipment, Inc. for the purchase 
of one (1) snow plow for a dump truck in the amount of $10,350.00 for usage as snow removal 
equipment by the Street Department. 
 
 SECTION 3:  The City Council of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas hereby authorizes the 
Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a contract with Hilbilt Sales for the purchase of two (2) salt/sand 
spreaders for ¾ ton trucks in the amount of $9,517.62 for usage as snow removal equipment by 
the Street Department. 
 
 SECTION 4:  The City Council of the City of Bella Vista, Arkansas hereby authorizes the 
Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a contract with Johnson Truck & Trailer of Lowell for the 
purchase of two (2) snow plows for ¾ ton trucks in the amount of $8,069.63 for usage as snow 
removal equipment by the Street Department. 
 
 
 PASSED THIS ________ DAY OF __________________________, 2015. 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       PETER CHRISTIE 
       MAYOR 



 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
WAYNE JERTSON 
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
JASON KELLEY 
STAFF ATTORNEY 
 
 
  
Requested by:  Mayor         
Prepared by:  Jason Kelley, Staff Attorney 


	092815 Agenda Reg City Council
	CITY OF BELLA VISTA
	III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE;
	VII. REPORTS:
	IX. NEW BUSINESS:
	DISCUSSION –
	ADJOURNMENT

	082415 CC Minutes
	ADJOURNMENT- Meeting adjourned at 8:08

	091415 CC Special Meeting Minutes
	August Fincls chart
	Financials for month ending August 2015
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3

	a-Ordinance Fireworks Hours modificaiton
	b-Ordinance 2015 Door to Door Hours
	c-Ordinance 2015 Referendum Ordinance
	d-Ordinance- Bid Waiver-Street Salt and Sand 2015-2016
	ea-Investment Policy
	e-Resolution-R2015- Investment Policy
	f-Defibrilator Purchase Fire Dept.
	ga-2015bentonvillemutualaid
	gb-Mutual Aid Agreement Bentonville PD
	g-Resolution-Bentonville BV police mutual aid agmt
	ha-Action Form - Condemn 9276 Suits Us Dr 09-24-15
	hb-9276_Suits_Us_Drive
	h-Resolution - Condemn 9276 Suits Us Dr 09-14-15
	i-Resolution for CC - Appointing BZA members
	ja-Action Form - Lease Agreement FY 2016 CDS Dept 09-17-15
	ja-Vancon Lease Agreement 091515
	j-Resolution - Lease Agreement FY 2016 CDS Dept 09-17-15
	ka-2015 Memorandum for Snow Removal Equipment
	kb-Snow Removal Equipment Bid Tab
	k-Resolution-Snow Removal Equip

